1968

Salt Lake City, A Municipal Corporation v. State of Utah : Brief of Defendant-Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

Salt Lake City filed this action seeking a declaration of the rights and duties of the State and the City under an 1890 grant, and supplemental contract in 1926, which provided that the City would furnish water for use on the State Capitol Grounds and in the buildings that have been erected on these grounds without charge to the State.

In this brief, the State of Utah will be referred to as the *State*, and the Territory of Utah will be referred

to as the *Territory*; Salt Lake City will be referred to as the *City*. When the rights of the State are referred to it in this brief it will include the rights acquired by the Territory.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

This matter was heard before the Honorable Leonard W. Elton of the Third Judicial District Court in and for Salt Lake County upon a written stipulation of the Facts. At the hearing on this matter both the City and the State moved for summary judgment. The lower court granted the City's motion and held that the grant of the free use of water by the City to the State was null and void. The lower court concluded: that the grant water was void because of a lack of consideration; that the grant was in violation of the trust under which the City must operate its water system without favor or discrimination to its inhabitants; that the grant violated the public policy of the Territory as was later set forth in Art. XI, § 6 of the Utah Constitution and that the 1926 agreement was in specific violation of said constitutional provision; and, finally, that a municipality holds water rights in a sacred trust for the benefit of its inhabitants and this right cannot be lost by estoppel, laches or adverse use. The court denied, without prejudice, the City's request for an order which would allow the City to collect from the State for water delivered in a separate cause of action.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Appellant submits that the decision of the lower court should be reversed and that the City should be required to deliver water to the State Capitol grounds and the buildings located on these grounds without any charge to the State.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This case was submitted on an agreed stipulation of facts, which included three exhibits. Rather than reiterate the information in the stipulation in its entirety, we will summarize the pertinent facts and then direct the court's attention to the appropriate paragraphs of the stipulation as the argument is presented.

When the territorial government of Utah moved the capitol from Fillmore to Salt Lake City, the City conveyed 19.46 acres of land to the Territory for governmental purposes. The State Capitol is located on this site. This conveyance was made in 1888 and the deed is attached to the stipulation of facts as Exhibit "A" (R. 16). The grant of land also conveyed to the Territory a one-half interest in an additional five acres of ground for reservoir purposes (R. 18). One of the conditions of this deed was that the land not actually used for governmental purposes be improved and maintained as a public park (R. 19). That same year the Utah Territorial Legislature created the Board of Commissioners on Capitol Grounds to take possession and

control of the grounds conveyed by the City. The sum of \$25,000.00 was appropriated and expended to improve and beautify these grounds (R. 10).

As a part of this same arrangement and in order to carry out certain of the conditions in the deed, the City also granted the State the use of water for the grounds and buildings located thereon. During the 1890 legislative session the Territorial legislature enacted the following legislation (R. 11) :

For the improvement of capitol grounds to be drawn by and expended under the supervision of the capitol commission . . . \$10,000.00.

Provided, that the above amount be expended on condition that Salt Lake City furnish, free of charge, sufficient water for said grounds and for the building proposed to be erected thereon.

On May 6, 1890, the City adopted a resolution granting the free use of water for the Capitol grounds and buildings (R. 21) :

Whereas the late Legislature appropriated the sum of \$10,000.00 for the improvement of the Capitol Grounds with the proviso that the City furnish water without charge for the grounds and any building erected thereon.

Be it resolved that the free use of water be granted to the Commission for the use of the Capitol Grounds and for the use of any building erected thereon - in accordance with the specific understanding with the City when arrangements were made to begin work on said grounds.

In order to furnish water to the Capitol grounds and buildings it was necessary to construct a reservoir and pipeline system. The Territory participated with the City in the initial expense of constructing these facilities. However, the City at its own expense has replaced the old reservoir with steel storage tanks and has cleaned the water line to the Capitol grounds (R. 12).

In 1914 the State completed construction of the Utah State Capitol Building on the tract of land described in Exhibit "A". The cost of said building was approximately \$2,309,235.56 and an additional sum of \$126,686.85 was expended for the purpose of grading, excavating, improving and parking the remaining land covered by said conveyance. Upon completion of the Capitol building the City immediately began the delivery of water to satisfy the needs and requirements within the Capitol building and on the surrounding grounds and this practice has continued up to the present time (R. 13 and 14).

Subsequent to the conveyance of land from the City in 1888 the State acquired approximately twenty acres of additional land surrounding the State Capitol building and grounds (R. 13).

In 1926 the State and City entered into an agreement wherein the State agreed to improve and maintain that portion of this additional twenty acres of land which was not being used for government purposes as

a park and the City agreed that its former grant would extend to these lands (R. 22) :

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this 25th day of October, A.D. 1926, by and between Salt Lake City, a municipal corporation of Utah, and the State of Utah:

WHEREAS the State of Utah has acquired certain lands adjoining its present Capitol Grounds in Salt Lake City, Utah, and it is now the intention of the State of Utah to improve said land and park the same and to maintain the same as a part of the State Capitol Grounds.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of said improvement and parking of said grounds, and the perpetual maintenance thereof as the State Capitol Grounds, said city does hereby agree that its former grant to the State of the perpetual free use of water for the Capitol Grounds, and the purposes for which it was used, shall also extend to such additional lands as shall be parked, improved and maintained as a part of the Capitol Grounds of the State.

It is understood and agreed that the State will be as economical as possible in the use of the water upon such additional land as shall be parked and improved, and will conserve the said water supply by using only a sufficient amount to preserve and maintain the beauty of the grounds, the lawns, flowers, trees and shrubbery thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year first above written. Done by

authority of a resolution of the Board of Commissioners of Salt Lake City, Utah.

* * * *

The State is supplied with water from the City Creek portion of the City's water system. Over the years it has been necessary for the City to expend substantial sums of money to provide its residents with a quality of water that would meet the health standards of the State of Utah and the United States Department of Health (R. 13). The State has not contributed any funds toward these improvements, however, no claim is being made in this action for reimbursement of these expenditures (R. 14).

Since the construction of the Capitol Building in 1914 the State has constructed a number of other buildings on the Capitol grounds for which the City has also furnished water without charge (R. 14).

The State has, over the years, expended large sums of money to construct, landscape and improve the Capitol grounds as a public park and tourist attraction. In addition the State expends a substantial amount of money annually to maintain the Capitol grounds as a public park (R. 15).

In 1960 the City made a demand on the State to pay for the use of this water. The State refused to make payment alleging that it had no right or obligation to expend public funds for this purpose. This action was then filed by the City.

In the lower court the City relied primarily on the following propositions to sustain its position: that the grant in 1890 was ultra vires the power of the City Commission; that the grant violated the common law of the Territory; that if the grant was valid in the first instance Utah Constitution Art. XI, § 6 voided it and that this constitutional provision prohibited the 1926 agreement; that there was no consideration for the grant of the free use of water; and, finally, that the affirmative defenses raised by the State are invalid. These contentions will be discussed as each relates to the points of argument.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

SALT LAKE CITY HAS BEEN LIMITED IN ITS AUTHORITY TO CHARGE THE STATE FOR THE WATER USED ON THE CAPITOL GROUNDS AND IN THE BUILDINGS LOCATED ON THESE GROUNDS.

When the Territory appropriated the \$10,000.00 for use on the Capitol grounds in 1890 it expressly provided that the appropriation was on the condition that the City was to furnish water without charge, Stipulation of Fact No. 3 (R. 11). The City has accepted this condition and limitation by its action in delivering water to the State for over seventy-five years. This alone would constitute sufficient acceptance of this condition

without any formal acceptance by the City Commission. However, the City did by formal action in 1890 and 1926 expressly accept the condition imposed upon it by the legislature in 1890. By imposing this condition on the City the legislature limited the power of any future city commission to charge the State for the water used on the Capitol grounds and in the buildings. This legislative action did not disturb the general power of the City to charge its inhabitants for the use of water but merely limited the City's power as it affected the State.

As a creature of the State the legislative authority over municipal corporations is plenary and virtually unlimited, 2 McQuillin, *Municipal Corporation*, § 4.03 (3rd ed. 1966); *Salt Lake City v. Tax Commission of Utah*, 11 U. 2d 359, 359 P. 2d 397 (1961). Further, the general power of a municipality to charge for water may be restricted by statute. 94 C.J.S. *Waters*, § 286.

The extent of legislative authority over cities in this regard was discussed by the Supreme Court of Florida in the case of *City of Gainesville v. Board of Control of the State of Florida*, 81 So. 2d 514 (1955). This was an action by the City of Gainesville to determine the rights of the City and the State under a contract where the City had, some forty-five years prior to the action, agreed to furnish water to the State University without charge as an inducement for locating the University in the City. The court held that the City was obligated to continue to furnish the water without charge and in so doing reviewed the circumstances

surrounding the location of the University within the City. One matter commented on by the court was the action of the Florida legislature in setting up a procedure to determine a location of certain educational institutions in the State of Florida and the requirements imposed on certain municipalities under what was known as the "Buckman Act":

So in the Buckman Act and in Section 323 of the Revised Statutes of Florida, the legislature, creator of municipalities, recognized, approved, and, at least in some instances, required contributions from city treasuries of monies as a condition to the establishment and maintenance of institutions of learning within their borders.

Further evidence of the attitude of the legislature with regard to such donations is found in Chapter 5498, Laws of Florida, Acts of 1903, expressly empowering the City of Gainesville to issue bonds for such amount as the city council should determine "for the purpose of securing educational advantages and facilities in or adjacent to such city." F.S.A. § 282.01.

And as late as 1953 the legislature in a footnote to Item No. 62 of the appropriation bill. " * * Provided that none of these monies shall be used to purchase water from the City of Gainesville," Chapter 28115, Laws of Florida 1953, F.S.A. § 282.01, item 62. Of course, we realize that this was long after the promise of the citizens' committee was made but it does indicate to us that the legislative intent forty-eight years afterwards harmonized with the pattern we think was set by the acts to which we have referred.

Also compare *City of East Cleveland v. Board of Education*, 157 N. E. 575 (Ohio 1927).

Limitations on the power of a city to charge for water has been sustained as valid in other cases. In the case of *Los Angeles v. Los Angeles City Water Company*, 177 U.S. 558 (1900) the United States Supreme Court upheld a contract where Los Angeles City had leased its waterworks to a water company for a term of 30 years and the company was to supply water to the inhabitants of the city. The city agreed that this was to be the exclusive supply of city water. The contract further provided that the city would not reduce the water rates below what was then being charged by its lessee. This contract was ratified by the California legislature. The court concluded that this contract was not a grant of the city's rate-making power but rather a valid limitation upon it. It was also held that the provisions of the new California constitution, which would have prohibited the city from granting certain of the privileges provided for in the contract, could not affect an existing contract. Also see *New Orleans Waterworks Co. v. Rivers*, 115 U.S. 674 (1885), and the case of *Omaha Water Company v. City of Omaha*, 147 F. 1 (1906).

The condition and limitation placed on the City by the Territorial legislature was valid when it was imposed, and applied when the parties executed the agreement in 1926 and it is a valid limitation today on the City's power to charge the State for the use of this water.

POINT II

THE CITY WAS NOT ACTING ULTRA VIRES OF ITS AUTHORITY IN MAKING THE USE OF WATER AVAILABLE TO THE STATE WITHOUT CHARGE.

The City was acting within its authority to grant the State the use of water free of charge even if the legislature had not expressly authorized such action. Grants of this nature have been sustained as either a donation or a binding contractual arrangement.

There was nothing inherently wrong with the City providing the State with water free of charge as was concluded by the lower court. Nor did this grant in any way violate the public policy of the State. The action of the City was in furtherance of a public purpose and this is sufficient to justify not charging the State for the use of this water, 12 McQuillin, *Municipal Corporations*, § 34.104 (3rd ed. 1950) :

Discriminations in the interest of the public and which benefit the people generally appear to be favored. Perhaps no rule can be formulated with sufficient flexibility to apply to every case that may arise. As once said: "It is only when the discrimination inures to the undue advantage of one man in consequence of some injustice inflicted on another that the law intervenes for the protection of the latter." Discriminations in favor of the government or charitable institutions, however, have been upheld. Discriminations in favor of the public at large, it has been said, are not opposed to public policy inasmuch

as they benefit the people generally by relieving them of part of their burdens and consequently such discrimination cannot be held illegal in the absence of legislation upon the subject.

The Supreme Court of Oklahoma in the case of *Fretz v. City of Edmond*, 168 P. 800 (1916) specifically upheld a grant of free water to a public institution on the ground that it was for a public purpose:

The contention that the city has the power in proper case to give from the resources of its public service plants to public institutions or public uses without unjustly discriminating against the rights of its inhabitants seems to be supported by reason, logic, and abstract justice. A fire originates within the borders of a city upon the property owned by some person who has never been a user of the city water. The fire is extinguished by water furnished by the city plant. Can it be said that the city is required to install a meter at some place upon the hose line in order to determine the number of thousand gallons for which the owner of the property must pay, or that by failing so to do and giving the water, not only for the benefit of the private individual, but for the benefit of the public, it unjustly discriminated against some person who has paid for all the water that he used? The statement of the proposition, of course, reveals its absurdity, and shows that the conduct of the city must be based, not upon absolute equality of service, but upon discrimination which is not essentially unjust. The public lavatories, rest rooms, public fountains, and public parks maintained by cities, are all places where water is donated for the public good. So it must seem

that water might be given for use in the city hall, or the city's public buildings. Does the rule extend to those institutions which are owned and controlled, not by the city, but by the State? We can see no good reason for the distinction between them, where the state institution of learning is located within the city and redounds, as it must both to the benefit of the business activities of the city and to the intellectual and moral life of its inhabitants. The support of that institution must be for the public good.

The case of *Brummitt v. Ogden Waterworks Co.*, 33 Utah 285, 93 Pac. 829 (1908) which is the principal case the City relied on in the lower court does not contravene this proposition. In this decision the court was concerned with the City delegating its general power to fix rates and with the problem of prohibiting a private benefit at public expense. This is clearly distinguishable from this situation. Further, there is nothing in Art. XI, § 6 of the Utah Constitution which would require a completely uniform charge to all users of City water. Hence, it would not matter whether such a grant was made before or after the Utah Constitution was adopted. Therefore, the 1926 agreement is valid even if it is considered to be separate and distinct from the 1890 grant. However, it appears that the 1926 contract was an attempt to clarify and more clearly define the limits of the prior arrangement of the parties regarding the maintaining of the Capitol grounds as a public park.

In *City of Gainesville v. Board of Control of the*

State of Florida, supra, the Florida court concluded that there was authority for the city to make such grant:

By the express terms of the Buckman Act the Board of Control was given the power "to receive donations" and we construe this provision to authorize acceptance of donations by the City of Gainesville. We have been directed to no provision of the city charter, expressly granting to the city the power to enter such an agreement as was executed by the "committee of citizens." Nor has our research revealed express authority so to contract.

After a careful study of this record, we conclude that the whole pattern for reorganizing and maintaining the educational system offered an opportunity for legal contributions by cities from their funds in order to secure to the citizens the obvious advantages of having institutions located in their midst. True no express grant of power so to contribute appeared in the Gainesville charter but it was properly implied from the powers expressed.

* * * *

The donation was, in effect, one for the benefit of the State, as well as the city, and was made to agents of the State with apparent sanction of the State. This, of course, would apply to any city offering a similar inducement. And there is nothing innately wrong with the donation. We would have to hold it of such character on the ground that no express power in that regard was given and none was given from which the power could be implied or to which the power to spend was incidental. We cannot find in the history of the transaction such defects or in the law such

a lack that would justify this absolute decision. Not only do we reject this conclusion but we think the action of the legislature in dealing with the educational system for half a century manifested a sanction by that body of the action of the city—or on behalf of the city.

We end the discussion on this point by remarking that in our opinion the commitment was not void; that it was ratified both by the city and the State.

The Texas court in the *City of Big Spring v. Board of Control*, *infra*, had no difficulty in sustaining a contract in which the City of Big Spring agreed to supply water to an agency of the State of Texas at a specified rate for as long as the State maintained a hospital within the city:

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