1968

Salt Lake City, A Municipal Corporation v. State of Utah : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE RESPECTIVE AGREEMENTS MADE WITH REFERENCE TO FURNISHING FREE WATER WITHOUT TIME LIMITATION ARE ULTRA VIRES AND HENCE VOID.

“The established rule (of law) is that municipal corporations have no power to make contracts which will embarrass or control them in the performance of their legislative powers and duties.” McQuillin on Municipal Corporations, 1966 Revised Volume, Volume 10, Section 29.07, p. 245.

This same treatise in said section 29.07 goes on to state:

“So, power conferred upon a city to contract respecting a particular matter does not confer power, by implication, so to contract with reference thereto as to embarrass and interfere with

its future control over the matter, as the public interests may require. *Hence, all contracts which interfere with the legislative or governmental functions of the municipality are absolutely void.*"

A most interesting case from this jurisdiction, involving this question, is that of *Warm Springs Co. v. Salt Lake City*, 50 Utah 58, 165 P. 788. In that case the city leased premises to plaintiff's assignor within city limits, which premises were comprised of a warm springs bath facility and a saloon for bar purposes, both premises leasing for \$200.00 per month. Plaintiff and assignee operated the bathing facility but sublet the saloon for \$100.00 per month, operating thus from 1906 to 1911 when the city passed an ordinance pursuant to state statute excluding the saloon premises from the district in which intoxicating liquors might be sold. Thereafter the plaintiff paid the \$200.00 monthly rentals under protest and in 1916 plaintiff presented its claim to the city for \$5,700.00, which claim the city denied. The court denied the plaintiff's right to recover back the rentals paid under protest, stating as follows:

"If the city had entered into a lease in which it had guaranteed the plaintiff the right to continue the saloon business in the teeth of chapter 106, *the lease to that effect would have been void. What could not be accomplished directly, therefore, cannot be accomplished indirectly . . .* In this case the act by the city which is complained of was governmental act, and hence the city is not liable for the consequences of the act." (Emphasis added.)

By analogy, if a City Commission in the instant case had purported to lease in perpetuity a water right to the Territory (and later to the State), thus attempting to deprive future City Commissions of the power to regulate the sale of water to its inhabitants, surely such lease in perpetuity would, under the reasoning and the rule of the Warm Springs Co. case be held void. Such was the ruling of the court in the case of *Belcher Sugar Refining Co. vs. St. Louis Grain Elevator Co.*, 101 Mo. 192, 13 S.W. 822, wherein it was held that where a city has the right to lease a part of its wharf for the purpose of a warehouse and grain elevator, *it must reserve the right to terminate such lease whenever the public interest demands such action.*

Along these same lines, and very much in point and on all fours with the facts in the instant dispute is the case of *City Council of Augusta vs. Richmond County*, 9134, 178 Ga. 400, 173 S.E. 140. In that case the plaintiff county brought action against defendant city to enjoin the city from cutting off water supplied by city to county courthouse for the past 40 years or more. The city and the county had jointly occupied the courthouse and grounds from 1820 to 1890 when, pursuant to an equitable proceeding in court, an agreement was entered into between the county and the then Mayor of the City which in part provided:

“The city council shall furnish all water necessary to run fountains, water closets, and for all other purposes to the county, free of rent.”

Thereafter, for a period of forty-three years the city did furnish free water to the county as provided in said agreement. In applying the law to the above stated facts the Supreme Court of Georgia in reversing the lower court, stated:

“We cannot concur in the judgment rendered by the court below. We do not think that the municipality could make a binding contract to furnish water free of charge for an indefinite time in the future, for the purpose mentioned in the contract referred to. *The agreement made in reference to furnishing water without charge on the part of the city was ultra vires, and could not be enforced as against subsequent councils of the municipality.*” (Emphasis added.)

A case from another jurisdiction, the State of Illinois, which further explains the law relating to a municipal corporation's lack of power to contract away its water and water rights, (and this without the benefit of a constitutional prohibition such as we have in this state) is that of *Eastern Illinois State Normal School vs. City of Charleston*, 271 Ill. 602, 111 N.E. 573. In that case the city owned and operated a waterworks plant and system and as an inducement to procure the location of the school at said city the City Council adopted a resolution which provided that if the school located within the city's limits the city would furnish water to the school for the consideration of five dollars for a period of fifty years. The court held that the city had no power to make such a contract and said contract was void and could not be enforced.

In the case of *Shannon v. Huron*, 9 S.D. 356, 69 N.W. 598, plaintiff sought to enforce payment of certain warrants issued by the city in payment of debts due for printing certain bills, pamphlets, circulars, letter-heads and envelopes, at the instance of persons who had been selected at a public meeting to compose a committee for the purpose of bringing forward the City of Huron as a candidate for the capitol of the State of South Dakota. The court held the warrants void, saying:

“The constitution of this state, legally adopted and ratified, was in full force at the time plaintiffs entered into an agreement with the capitol committee to do the printing for which three of the warrants in the suit were afterwards issued directly to plaintiffs; and article 10 of section 2 thereof provides that ‘no tax or assessment shall be levied or collected, or debts contracted by municipal corporations, except in pursuance of law for public purposes specified by law.’ The location of the state capitol for the benefit of private individuals was a matter wholly foreign to the purposes and objects of the corporation, the charter of which neither expressly nor by implication authorized any of its officers to burden the municipality with debts incurred in furtherance of the scheme; and the city was entirely powerless to issue its warrants therefor. Plaintiffs, the capitol committee, and all other persons dealing with the officers of the municipality, had notice and were charged with a knowledge of the law, under the limitations and restrictions of which no liability could be created or debt incurred against the city of Huron for printing

capitol campaign literature, and the warrants, when issued, were void in toto."

The application of law in the *Shannon* case to the matter before this court clearly points out the fact that when the city fathers purported to provide (for an indefinite period) free water to the Territory of Utah, such act was beyond the power and authority of the municipality and such an arrangement was void in toto as the court stated in the *Shannon* case.

POINT II.

THE AGREEMENT OF 1890 TO FURNISH FREE WATER WAS CONTRARY TO PUBLIC POLICY, WHICH POLICY WAS DECLARED IN WRITING AND EMBODIED IN ARTICLE XI, SECTION 6 OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION, AND IS THEREFORE VOID.

In the year 1895, pursuant to the authority of the Enabling Act passed by the Congress of the United States, delegates were elected to serve in the Constitutional Convention of Utah. These delegates discussed at some length the article of the proposed Constitution which had reference to municipal corporations, and the part which concerned them most was Section 6 of Article XI, as adopted, and which reads as follows:

"Sec. 6. [Municipalities forbidden to sell waterworks or rights] No municipal corporation, shall directly or indirectly, lease, sell, alien or dispose of any waterworks, water rights, or sources of

water supply now, or hereafter to be owned or controlled by it; but all such waterworks, water rights and sources of water now owned or hereafter to be acquired by any municipal corporation, shall be preserved, maintained and operated by it for supplying its inhabitants with water at reasonable charges: Provided, That nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent any such municipal corporation from exchanging water-rights, or sources of water supply, for other water-rights or sources of water supply of equal value, and to be devoted in like manner to the public supply of its inhabitants."

It is interesting to read these proceedings and the record of this discussion for it clearly portrays the thinking of those men and the foresight they exercised in recognizing the need for declaring in writing the public policy of this state with reference to the sacred trust in which cities hold their water for the benefit of their inhabitants.

On page 672, first column, of Volume I, Proceedings, Constitutional Convention 1890, Utah, one of the delegates, a Mr. S. A. Thurman, in discussing Section 6 as it reads above, stated:

" . . . I think the amendment (deleting the phrase 'water at reasonable charges') ought to prevail, 'water at reasonable charges.' Now, I take the position that if we leave the balance of the section stand, *requiring cities to hold this property* (ownership and control of water rights and water supply) *as a trust for the benefit of the inhabitants to supply them with water*, the courts will always construe the question of a

reasonable charge, *because it will be a trust fixed and formed by the constitution for the purpose of supplying the people with water, . . .*" (emphasis added)

As hereinafter stated, on the basis of the history and the law, it is respondent's contention that Article XI, Section 6 of the Utah Constitution was a written declaration of the common law existing in the Territory of Utah prior thereto and specifically when the 1890 agreement to furnish free water was made.

In *Am. Jur.* 2d, Vol. 16, page 270 and 271, Section 87, under the heading Circumstances Attending Adoption of Provisions; Existing Conditions and History, on page 271, is the following statement:

"A constitutional provision must be presumed to have been framed and adopted in the light and understanding of prior and existing laws and with reference to them, and, like a statute, is properly to be expounded *in the light of conditions existing at the time of its adoption, the general spirit of the times, and the prevailing sentiments among the people.*" (emphasis added)

The court's attention is also called to a statement in *C.J.S., Constitutional Law*, Volume 16, page 116, Section 36, under the heading, Construction With Reference to Common Law, wherein it is stated:

"In the absence of a clear intention to the contrary, a constitution is generally to be construed in the light of the common law, since there is a presumption that no change in the common law was intended.

“Since a constitution is not the beginning of law in the state, it assumes the existence of a well understood system of law which is to remain in force.”

The court is fully aware of the history of the arid west, and particularly of the history of the Territory and State of Utah; that the early pioneers and settlers of this arid region realized that water was the life blood of their civilization and that particularly for cities and towns to grow, it would be necessary to zealously guard and protect the water rights of such cities and towns with a sacred trust against any political or economic maneuvering by elected officials which could in the future jeopardize and irreparably injure the residents of any such city or town; that when the framers of our constitution met and drafted it they expressed in Article XI, Section 6, the common law as it had existed in this Territory up to that time; and, finally, that the constitution when adopted did, therefore, not change the law of the State of Utah which now expressly prohibits, and in 1890 did impliedly prohibit, cities and towns from alienating or giving away in perpetuity any of their water or water rights and that said constitutional provision was a written declaration of such basic common law as did previously exist in this State when a Territory.

POINT III.

THE AGREEMENT OF 1926 TO EXTEND THE USE OF FREE WATER TO “ADDITION-

AL LANDS" WAS IN VIOLATION OF ARTICLE XI, SECTION 6, OF THE UTAH CONSTITUTION AND THEREFORE VOID.

The meaning of Article XI, Section 6 of the Utah Constitution (*supra*) appears to be absolutely clear and unequivocal. However, this Honorable court was asked to render an interpretation of this constitutional provision in the case of *Hyde Park Town v. Chambers*, 99 Utah 118, 104 P.2d 220, which case dealt with the power or right of a city or town to alienate any of its water rights in light of the above constitutional provision. The town of Hyde Park purported to exchange a water right or a right in perpetuity to free use of the town's water for a right of way for its water main, which transaction this court held to be in violation of Article XI, § 6, *supra*, as an abortive attempt to alienate the water rights of a city or town. This court stated: "We are of the opinion that the contract is void as contended by the town," (the Town's contention was that this contract was void as in violation of Article XI, § 6, (*supra*)).

The application of the law as rendered in the Hyde Park Town case would clearly make void and unenforceable the purported agreement entered into in 1926 between the City and the State.

There is no logical reason in the law why a state, as a party, should have any greater right to violate its own constitution with respect to subdivisions and municipalities of that state than would private indi-

viduals or any other party. There should be no question, therefore, but that the State of Utah was bound, and still is bound, by its own constitutional limitations in its contractual relationships with others, including a city of that state.

The State next advances the conclusion that the City's 1926 agreement to furnish free water to an additional 20 acres of land which the State added to the original capitol site was "No more than a clarification of the 1890 grant." Instead of being a clarification of the 1890 promise to "grant" free use of city water, this agreement actually purported to extend the terms of the former "grant" of free water to the additional land. Why was a clarification of the original promise necessary or required? Free water had been delivered under the original promise for about 36 years without question. No problem of construction or interpretation of the original promise had arisen that needed clarification. The fact is the State had acquired additional lands to add to the capitol grounds and persuaded the City to furnish free water to these grounds the same as the City was furnishing free water to the original capitol site. Such a "grant" of free city water could not relate back and be a part of or in any way clarify the original "grant". *It was a brand new promise to furnish additional water without charge to additional land, but made, we submit, in violation of Section 6, Article XI of the State Constitution and was, for that reason, void.*

POINT IV.

THE AGREEMENT BY THE CITY TO PROVIDE THE TERRITORY FREE USE OF ITS WATER WAS NOT A GRANT OF A WATER RIGHT BUT MERELY AN ABORTIVE ATTEMPT TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT TO PROVIDE WATER FREE OF CHARGE WHICH AGREEMENT WAS VOID FOR LACK OF CONSIDERATION.

Historically, the arrangement for the City to furnish free water for the grounds and any building erected thereon was an after-thought and was not related to, nor a part of, the consideration for the State Capitol being located in Salt Lake City.

The State first argues that the conveyance of the Capitol site to the Territory and the later granting of free water to the capitol grounds commission were one arrangement or transaction. We maintain that this is no more than a fortuitous assumption, wholly fallacious and contrary to the stipulated facts. We shall demonstrate this by the following detailed reference to the facts as stipulated.

The deed to the Capitol site was dated May 1, 1888. It provides:

“To have and to hold the above granted premises, with appurtenances, and every part thereof unto the said party of the second part . . . for the erection and maintenance of the capitol buildings of Utah Territory or future state of

Utah and the proper appurtenances and surroundings, including a reservoir to said capitol buildings and grounds."

It provided further as a condition to the grant, "that a portion of said land not actually devoted to buildings as aforesaid be improved and cultivated as a public park."

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